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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: We are going to

          3  begin our hearing today on Resolution No.745, this

          4  is the Women's Issues Committee.

          5                 Good morning.  I would like to thank

          6  you for coming here today to hear testimony on

          7  Resolution 745- A, which calls upon the Augusta

          8  National Golf Club to cease its practice of gender

          9  discrimination, and discrimination, and calls upon

         10  the media to refrain from covering events that take

         11  place on any venue that practices or promotes such

         12  discrimination.  Also, I'd like to thank my

         13  colleague Gale Brewer, Council Member Gale Brewer,

         14  for her work on this issue in introducing this

         15  resolution.

         16                 Some might wonder why, with all of

         17  the turmoil in the world, we would focus on such an

         18  issue.  Well, let me say that this issue is much

         19  more than golf.  It is about the rights of women and

         20  minorities.  It is about the reality that

         21  institutionalization, discrimination against women

         22  and minorities is still a large problem in this

         23  country.  It is about the rights and concerns of

         24  women being dismissed as trivial.  While American

         25  women are fighting to insure freedom of those in

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  other lands, what do we offer them here?  How can we

          3  as Americans, who proudly claim to stand for

          4  democracy and equality, continue to treat women as

          5  second class citizens?  What does this say about us

          6  as a nation?

          7                 While private clubs may have the

          8  legal right to bar membership based on gender, it

          9  sends a message that women are not welcome in a

         10  man's world.  Additionally, the media coverage of

         11  the Masters Tournament, sends the message to

         12  millions of people, that it is okay to continue such

         13  segregation. By broadcasting a major sporting event

         14  in a venue that openly supports segregation and

         15  discrimination, the media is complacent in

         16  perpetuating those same values  This resolution

         17  says, that we as New Yorkers, say, that it is not

         18  okay for women to be disregarded, it is not okay to

         19  continue the legacy of sexism and discrimination.

         20  Up until a few short years ago, African- Americans

         21  were barred from such places,

         22  but the pressure from society helped to change that.

         23                 That is why, what we are looking to

         24  do here today, puts some pressure on the entities,

         25  that not only say that it is okay to discriminate,
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          2  but, to make a profit doing so.

          3                 Thank you for coming, today we will

          4  have an opening statement also from Council Member

          5  Gale Brewer, who actually has been the driving force

          6  behind us having this hearing today, and I thank

          7  Gale for being patient and also introducing such an

          8  important piece of legislation.  Council member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALE BREWER:  Thank

         10  you very much chair Boyland.  This resolution came

         11  about thanks to Cary Goodman and the Women's Sports

         12  Foundation, and Martha Burk, and people coming from

         13  Rev. Jackson's organization.  And the concept behind

         14  it is that the tournament is a public tournament,

         15  and it was being broadcast by a international-

         16  national news organization, at a club that

         17  discriminates against women.  It's bad enough that

         18  the club discriminates against women, but from my

         19  perspective, for the world to be a part of that, in

         20  the sense that it is a public event at a club that

         21  discriminates against women was particularly

         22  atrocious. I was very much a part, in the l970's and

         23  1980's of changing the policies regarding women

         24  getting into clubs in the state, both at the Fort

         25  Orange Club in Albany, where originally only male

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  legislators, I was actually working in Albany when

          3  only male legislators were allowed into that club,

          4  and it was the women in the state legislature who

          5  pushed to change that.  And then here in this state

          6  with Lynn Chafron (phonetic), and people from the

          7  now Legal Defense Fund, the City law was changed

          8  regarding private clubs in the City of New York.

          9  So, it is a concept and a policy that absolutely

         10  should not exist in this country, and I understand

         11  that Congresswomen Carolyn Maloney has introduced a

         12  law nationally that would mirror what we are doing

         13  here in the State of New York in terms of no

         14  discrimination at private clubs.

         15                 This particular issue came to the

         16  fore, I think, thanks to many people, including

         17  Martha Burk, and it hit a cord. It was very

         18  interesting, to me, we obviously were protesting the

         19  discrimination against women at this particular

         20  club, at this particular time.  It was really

         21  interesting to me because around the country a lot

         22  of news reporters, and obviously, individuals did

         23  not understand what the big deal is.  Well, the big

         24  deal is that if you are a young women and, I know,

         25  Councilwomen Boyland has done a great job about
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          2  talking about Title IX, making sure that it

          3  continues and, in fact, is not just written on

          4  paper, but, there is actual funding, it is monitored

          5  and in this City girls gets to participate in

          6  sports, equal to boys.

          7                 That is a challenge in itself.  And,

          8  if in fact, you have a national news organization

          9  and a national tournament, that is known

         10  internationally, where it may be that the tournament

         11  is not discriminating, and CBS is not

         12  discriminating, but it looks to the young women that

         13  it is discrimination, they, then, will not be as

         14  excited about being part of Title IX and going on to

         15  excel in sports.  And that is what we not only what

         16  we want them to do but they have every right to do

         17  that.  And, young women, we know, because we are in

         18  and out of our schools, we have our own children, we

         19  know that they respond when there is something that

         20  is negative. They are already struggling and this is

         21  one more challenge that they have to face.  So there

         22  should be no discrimination at all. There should not

         23  be an international event that is part of a

         24  discriminary (sic) practice, and it certainly should

         25  not be televised.

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 My understanding from Cary Goodman,

          3  who helps me a lot on all these matters, explained

          4  to me that year after year, unless we stop it, this

          5  particular tournament is going to be at this

          6  particular club.  So it is not bad timing for us to

          7  have this discussion now.  Because unless there is

          8  more continued pressure, this practice that we saw,

          9  just recently, April 13th, is going to continue.

         10                 So I thank you, Madam chairwomen, and

         11  look forward to the discussion.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:   Thank you

         13  Council Member Brewer.  We have also been joined by

         14  Council Member Espada, newly elected Council Member

         15  Espada.  I have had the privilege of serving with

         16  his son, a wonderful family.  And Council Member

         17  Brewer has brought, I guess, a mini- me here, you

         18  would like to introduce your guest?

         19                                                             COUNCIL

         20  MEMBER BREWER:  Introduce yourself Albert.

         21                 MR. ALBERT KRAMER:  My name is

         22  Albert, Albert Kramer and I go to Eleanor Roosevelt

         23  High School.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  That is why

         25  we call him mini- me, right Gale?  All right.  We
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          2  will start today as we wait for some of our

          3  colleagues to, there are a lot of issues that are on

          4  the table today.  But we will hear a word from Dr.

          5  Cary Goodman, as well as Miss Jennifer Butler from

          6  the Women's Sports Foundation. Can you please join

          7  us at the table and state your name and affiliation?

          8    We have three chairs, Charles Farrell, would you

          9  like to join us, well, okay, Charles Farrell from

         10  Rainbow/PUSH, welcome.

         11                 We are going to have Charles, Dr.

         12  Goodman, speak first.  Doctor, state your name and

         13  affiliation, for the record.

         14                 DR. CARY GOODMAN:  My name is Cary

         15  Goodman.  I live in Council Member Brewers'

         16  District, on the Upper West Side, and I am a Dean at

         17  the Ross School and Institute in New York.

         18                 First, I would like to take the

         19  opportunity to thank you, Chairwomen Boyland, for

         20  convening the hearing, and Council Member Brewer for

         21  tenaciously sticking to this issue.  And extend also

         22  a welcome to Council Member Espada in whose district

         23  I labored for many of year, and very delighted to

         24  see him here today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  I think
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          2  everyone has a beginning from the Espadas, in some

          3  point in time.

          4                 DR. CARY GOODMAN:  I guess one other

          5  person, Council Member Koppell, who joined this

          6  fight much earlier in the process, and who has been

          7  on the street corners, trying to alert people to the

          8  problems that we are facing with this continued

          9  segregation, and CBS's continuing to broadcast

         10  segregation.

         11                 I am someone who comes to the

         12  situation as a volunteer, no institutional

         13  affiliation, simply, a parent who is concerned that

         14  his daughter get the same kinds of opportunities and

         15  enjoys the same kinds of rewards from sports in

         16  society as his son has gotten.  So, I am delighted

         17  to be here, and to observe for you as a parent, how

         18  my daughter and her friends have felt in witnessing,

         19  this process.  Golf is not a big part of my families

         20  recreation.  And, I suppose, in fact, when I tell

         21  some people that I was helping on this issue they

         22  just shake their heads and say, "Can't we just get

         23  rid of golf to start with?"  And, there is really

         24  not that big of a problem, but the idea, that after

         25  we have struggled for so many years to overcome
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          2  discrimination in so many ways in sports against

          3  African- American athletes, against female athletes.

          4    And that we would still be sort of spinning around

          5  on an axis, talking about broadcast of an event

          6  where the main message is, women are not allowed.

          7  Seems to me to be, it is ludicrous.

          8                 I am here to lend my voice and have

          9  been lending my support to efforts to try to get CBS

         10  to discuss its policies.  And I am hopeful that the

         11  Council can use its leverage.   I know that Council

         12  Member Brewer, and Martha Burk, and I believe Rev.

         13  Jackson all signed a letter requesting the

         14  opportunity to discuss this issue with CBS.  And, I

         15  think it was a sign of the whole way in which the

         16  issue has been handled, that there was no response

         17  at all.  Just sort of an arrogance of power that

         18  somehow they could ignore a request by these

         19  esteemed representatives of government and civic

         20  organizations because they wanted the opportunity to

         21  broadcast the Masters.

         22                 So, if anything comes from this

         23  hearing, I would request that you use your good

         24  offices to see if in fact, - - Are there any CBS

         25  representatives, executives who are scheduled to
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          2  testify today?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  They were

          4  invited.

          5                 DR. CARY GOODMAN:  Invited.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Invited.

          7                 DR. CARY GOODMAN:  So, I mean, that

          8  would be the message I bring today.  Can we get CBS

          9  to have a discussion, in a high school, in the

         10  Council Chambers at the Mayors, to try to explain

         11  and interpret for us, why they continue to support

         12  this kind of discrimination and segregation?  And

         13  other than that, I would be happy to lend my efforts

         14  to whatever the Council sees fit in going forward

         15  that way.

         16                 I guess, I also want to say a nod to

         17  Rita Haley, and the National Organization for Women.

         18    I know that they had three separate occasions

         19  where they picketed outside of CBS to try to bring

         20  this matter to public attention.  And, I am sorry, I

         21  do not see Rita or a representative from a group

         22  here to testify today, but, they along with Martha,

         23  have been sort of heroically trying to raise the

         24  general publics understanding of this issue.  And I

         25  think it is worth crediting them for that effort.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you, Dr.

          4  Goodman.  We will hear testimony from our entire

          5  panel, then we will take questions.  State your name

          6  and affiliation for the record.

          7                 CHARLES FARRELL:  My name is Charles

          8  Farrell, and I am the Director of Rainbow Sports,

          9  which is a Division of the Rainbow/PUSH Coalition,

         10  whose mission is to address, expand and promote

         11  opportunities for minorities and women in the sports

         12  industry.

         13                 I, too, appreciate the opportunity to

         14  come before this committee to talk about the ongoing

         15  discrimination at Augusta National Golf Club and

         16  some of its implications.  I was one of those

         17  individuals in what was called "The Pit", that

         18  small, grassy knoll half a mile from the gates of

         19  Augusta National Golf Club, where demonstrators were

         20  relegated to on April 12th.  I was there in support

         21  of Martha Burk of the National Council of Women's

         22  Organizations, who opened up a firestorm about a

         23  year ago when she wrote to the chairman of the club,

         24  Hootie Johnson, asking when the club was going to

         25  drop its all- male membership and join the current
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          2  century.

          3                 Johnson, apparently  feeling very

          4  threatened, responded in a defensive way saying that

          5  probably the club would have a women one day, but it

          6  would not be "at the point of a bayonet"

          7                 That letter launched a year- long

          8  campaign that culminated in the April 12th

          9  demonstration.  Now, you may have read that there

         10  were not a whole lot of demonstrators there, and

         11  that the news media actually outnumbered the

         12  protesters who were there to challenge Augusta's

         13  exclusionary policy.  Well, right and wrong can not

         14  be measured by numbers.  Al Gore supporters

         15  outnumbered George Bush's at the polls in 2000, and

         16  that did not spell success for him.  And, we may

         17  have superior numbers in Iraq, but that does not

         18  validate the war.

         19                 We must be mindful, also, that change

         20  always begins from the viewpoint of the minority,

         21  otherwise it would not be called change.  And,

         22  Augusta National will change its policy, it will

         23  have a women member, most probably in the near

         24  future.  The pressure will become too great for

         25  Hootie Johnson and Augusta National to continue to
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          2  resist change.

          3                 And that pressure is increased

          4  through efforts such as Proposed Resolution 745- A,

          5  which calls upon Augusta to end its gender

          6  segregation, and urging those who televise the

          7  tournament to refrain from broadcasting the Masters

          8  as long as Augusta embraces discrimination.  Passing

          9  this resolution will send a clear message that

         10  elected officials, at least, in the City of New York

         11  will not stand by idly in the face of

         12  discrimination.

         13                 No club, private or public, can

         14  discriminate against the majority of the people

         15  without sending a clear message that females are not

         16  entitled to participate fully in the benefits of

         17  living in America.  Young girls will get the

         18  message, young    women who are trying to establish

         19  careers will get the message,   women need not apply

         20  here, and that is a sad and abusive message to send.

         21                 Now, those who support Augusta's all

         22  male policy will argue Constitutional protection;

         23  that as a private club it has the right to

         24  discriminate.  While that may be technically true, a

         25  private club that depends on local government and
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          2  public sponsorship for support, and that produces

          3  such a public event as the Masters tournament, must

          4  be held publicly accountable.  Augusta has a moral

          5  obligation not to practice discrimination, and

          6  Augusta National cannot embrace a double standard-

          7  private when challenged, public when on display for

          8  the world.

          9                 There are about 300 members of

         10  Augusta National Golf Club, including golfing greats

         11  such as Arnold Palmer and Jack Nicklaus.  Membership

         12  is a veritable Who's Who of American business and

         13  industry.  Do you really want some of the country's

         14  top employers and producers, many of whom are

         15  headquartered right here in New York, to be led by

         16  men who belong to a club that will not have women

         17  for members?  Can those men be fair in running those

         18  companies when they, as members of Augusta, practice

         19  discrimination?

         20                 As I said, I was at Augusta April

         21  12th, and I was there because it was the right thing

         22  to do.  Passing Resolution 745- A is also the right

         23  thing to do.  It is part of the pressure we need to

         24  force the changing of the guard at Augusta.  The

         25  pressure will increase, and the pressure will not
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          2  stop until the walls of discrimination at Augusta

          3  come tumbling down.

          4                 Thank you for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

          6  much.  Next we will hear from Jennifer Butler.  Go

          7  ahead.

          8                 JENNIFER BUTLER:  Thank you.  My name

          9  is Jennifer Butler, and I am the Advocacy

         10  Coordinator at the Women's Sports Foundation.  And,

         11  I am not here today to necessarily talk about

         12  Augusta, specifically, but another highly related

         13  topic.  Last September, I testified for Council

         14  Member Boyland about Title IX, and I would like to

         15  give you an update, as far as the developments that

         16  have happened since then.

         17                 The message is the same though, that

         18  discrimination against women in sport is not going

         19  to be tolerated in our society. So, I would like to

         20  thank you again for the opportunity to be here

         21  today.  Much has happened since I last testified in

         22  September.  All the Commission meetings have been

         23  completed.  The Majority Report and the "unofficial"

         24  Minority Report has been presented to the Secretary

         25  of Education and a National Title IX Education
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          2  Campaign has been launched by the National Coalition

          3  for Women and Girls in Education.  I will discuss

          4  briefly each of these developments.

          5                   The Commission on Opportunity in

          6  Athletics met a

          7  total of six times approximately once a month from

          8  mid- August to the end of February.  The format of

          9  the first meetings consisted of a l0- minute

         10  presentation from 10 invited experts, including a

         11  question and answer segment.  This was  followed by

         12  a public comment period.  Individuals were given 5

         13  minutes to present their comments to the

         14  Commissioners.  The last two meetings in

         15  Philadelphia and Washington, D.C. Provided the

         16  opportunity for the Commissioners to synthesize both

         17  the testimony of the experts and the public opinion

         18  to develop findings and recommendations for the

         19  final report.

         20                 Although the outcome of the

         21  Commission on Opportunity in Athletics was

         22  predictable, the language of the final report was

         23  still incredibly disappointing and highly dangerous.

         24  This is why two Commissioners, Julie Foudy and Donna

         25  de Varona, felt compelled to issue a Minority
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          2  Report, and express their strong opposition to some

          3  of the recommendations contained in the Majority

          4  Report.  The Secretary of Education, Rod Paige,

          5  refused the request of Ms. De Varona and Ms. Foudy

          6  to enter their Minority Report into public record.

          7  He also stated that her would only move forward on

          8  the "unanimous" recommendations.  Although this

          9  appeared to be a minor victory, there are two

         10  recommendations in particular that the Secretary

         11  persists in calling unanimous that could

         12  significantly change the definition of "equal

         13  opportunity" under the regulations to severely

         14  disadvantage female students.  These two

         15  recommendations include:

         16                 1.  Permission for the Secretary to

         17  set a "reasonable variance" from the current Title

         18  IX standards for equality.  Because this language is

         19  open- ended, it is impossible to estimate the losses

         20  the Secretary could inflict on women and girls if he

         21  adopts this recommendation.

         22                 2.  Permission for the Secretary to

         23  explore "additional ways of demonstrating equity",

         24  but does not provide any guidelines as to what these

         25   "additional ways" could be.  This recommendation is
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          2  especially disturbing because the Secretary could

          3  interpret this as a blank check to make any changes

          4  to Title IX policies.  He has already indicated his

          5  preference for using the results of interest surveys

          6  to justify lower opportunities for females.

          7                 Overall, there is solid evidence to

          8  indicate that the Commission's process and conduct

          9  was flawed.  The Commission acted in self- interest

         10  and without acceptable due diligence as illustrated

         11  by the following examples:

         12                 Before acting upon the proposals, the

         13  Commission made no effort to assess each proposal's

         14  impact on numbers of female athletic opportunities

         15  or athletic scholarship dollars.

         16                 The Commission consisted of 10 or 15

         17  members who represented Division 1- A institutions,

         18  and advanced three proposals that would advantage

         19  college institutions only, and especially advantage

         20  Division 1- A institutions.

         21                 Commissioners acted against the

         22  advise of legal and research experts and in

         23  contradiction to previous Title IX court decisions

         24  that rejected the use of interest surveys and the

         25  methods of counting participants proposed by the
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          2  Commission.

          3                 The Commission hearings were also

          4  confuted in a biased manner:

          5                 Of the 52 invited panelists, who are

          6  supposed to be experts, opponents of Title IX

          7  outnumbered supporters by more than two to one.

          8  There were 15 in favor of Title IX, 31 against, and

          9  6 neutral.

         10                 Ten of 52 panelist opportunities went

         11  to organizations and individuals affiliated with

         12  representatives of men's discontinued teams who

         13  called for the elimination of the current Title IX

         14  equal opportunity standard.

         15                 At least five of the panelists

         16  represented schools sued for Title IX violations

         17  with no panelists called who represented plaintiffs

         18  against institutions in Title IX court cases.

         19                 In response to biased proceedings of

         20  the Commission, as well as the real threat to Title

         21  IX, presented by the Majority Report, the National

         22  Coalition for Women and Girls in Education along

         23  with honorary chairs, Holly Hunter, Geena Davis, and

         24  Senator Birch Bayh have launched a National Title IX

         25  Education Campaign. The purpose of the campaign is
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          2  to educate the public and Congressional

          3  representatives about the importance of keeping

          4  Title IX policies unchanged and the need for

          5  stronger enforcement of the law.

          6                 The Coalition has established a

          7  comprehensive action plan, and created a single

          8  issue website dedicated to Title IX. SaveTitleIX.com

          9  serves as a central location for supporters of Title

         10  IX to communicate directly with President Bush and

         11  Congress about the need to preserve this critically

         12  important law.  Updates and action alerts are also

         13  posted to keep people informed of the most recent

         14  Title IX developments.  Other components of the

         15  Education Campaign include a father and daughter's

         16  initiative: Media outreach: Personal visits with and

         17  communications to every member of Congress by

         18  athletes, celebrities, citizens and education

         19  leaders: Grassroots mobilization by elected public

         20  officials and over 100 organizations to make the

         21  public aware of the current threats to equal

         22  opportunities in sports.

         23                 We ask that you indicate your support

         24  for Title IX by adopting a resolution calling for no

         25  policy changes and stronger enforcement, and that
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          2  you contact your United States Congressional

          3  Representatives asking that they take the same

          4  position.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

          6  much.  We will take questions from Council members,

          7  but first let me start by --  Mrs. Butler, since the

          8  implementation of Title IX, haven't women

          9  participated in sports grown immensely?

         10                 MS. BUTLER:  Yes, it has.  At the

         11  collegiate level it has grown by 400 percent, at the

         12  high school level it has grown by 840 percent,

         13  however, with that growth, there is still a huge

         14  disparity that exists.  So, for instance, at college

         15  and universities, about 55 percent of the women are

         16  enrolled, and 42 percent of the opportunities are

         17  given to female athletes.  There is still a huge

         18  disparity there.  In addition, there is a disparity

         19  of $133 million in scholarship dollars that is given

         20  out to female athletes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  What about

         22  retribution for those universities that have not,

         23  where the law states that they should participate in

         24  the program, that they should do outreach to women

         25  that come into the universities, is there some sort
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          2  of retribution that goes to those colleges, as

          3  opposed to pulling of all the funding which they do

          4  not want to do, I assume?

          5                 MS. BUTLER:  No, I mean, essentially

          6  what has happened is plaintiffs, or women who are

          7  trying to fight for their opportunities or their

          8  scholarship opportunities, have either have filed a

          9  complaint with The Office for Civil Rights, which is

         10  a very lengthy, time- consuming, and sometimes, you

         11  know, does not necessarily get the situation

         12  resolved, type of process, or they end up suing the

         13  school.  So, there has not really been, there are

         14  the EADA Reports, that are required of colleges and

         15  universities, and this requires the schools to

         16  report their participation numbers, operating

         17  expenses, and revenues, and that is collected, and

         18  posted on a website.  However, nothing is done with

         19  that information.  It is just, literally, collected

         20  and posted on a website.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That is very

         22  interesting.

         23                 MS. BUTLER:  We use it to help

         24  strengthen our arguments, but the OCR does not use

         25  that information in any manner.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  We have to

          3  begin to look at that in terms of how we do

          4  marketing when colleges come out to recruit from our

          5  high schools, how we have to begin to do marketing

          6  for that.

          7                 Let me just ask Mr. Farrell, aren't

          8  women considered to be the driving force behind

          9  family purchases, when you talk about providing huge

         10  sources of income for companies and advertisement on

         11  TV.  Why would advertising on television stations

         12  want to alienate a client, such as a women, by not

         13  having, let us just say in terms of Channel 2, by

         14  even airing the Masters, the motivating force behind

         15  it?

         16                 MR. FARRELL:  Well, that is one of

         17  the questions we want to know and, I think, that

         18  that is the next step in this whole campaign against

         19  Augusta, is for women and everybody, really, to use

         20  their pocketbooks as leverage against sponsors who

         21  support the Masters, against companies that pay the

         22  dues of members of Masters, against companies who

         23  have members at Augusta.  I think that that is the

         24  next part of our campaign is to take that message to

         25  their front doors, that if you continue to support
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          2  Augusta either as a sponsor or as a member, in the

          3  long run, it is going to hurt you in your

          4  pocketbook.  That is what businesses understand, it

          5  is the bottom line of money.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  I heard that

          7  there were about five major advertising companies

          8  that decided that they would pull out, or CBS

          9  decided - -

         10                 MR. FARRELL:  There were several that

         11  decided not to have a presence at Augusta this year.

         12    If you have ever been there or heard about it, it

         13  is really a week- long party, with corporate tents

         14  spending thousands and thousands and thousands of

         15  dollars to entertain clients.  And several

         16  companies, I believe, IBM, American Express, I am

         17  not sure of all of them, decided this year that they

         18  were not going to have a presence at Augusta.  And

         19  we hope that that will continue.  That more and more

         20  companies will find it abhorrent to be at Augusta,

         21  and participating in what is really an all male

         22  party or supporting an all male policy.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Do you know how

         24  much revenue CBS gains from broadcasting the

         25  Masters?
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          2                 MR. FARRELL:  This year they did not

          3  gain anything, but it is certainly in the millions

          4  and millions of dollars.  I do not have an exact

          5  figure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Okay.  Let me

          7  just ask Mr. Goodman.

          8                 MR. FARRELL:  But one of the reasons

          9  CBS continued to broadcast it without commercial

         10  sponsorship, is that it is probably one of the most

         11  prestigious golf tournaments ever.  And, that is one

         12  of the things that we argue, is, you cannot have

         13  this internationally recognized tournament on a

         14  yearly basis at a golf club that will not admit

         15  women.  And, you cannot call yourself a private

         16  club, when you put on such an incredibly public

         17  event.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That was one of

         19  our concerns,

         20  how many people actually watch the Masters and the

         21  practices of, not just the athletes, but the club

         22  itself.  And we will get to some of the statements

         23  that I read from some of the athletes that actually

         24  participate.

         25                 Let me just ask Mr. Goodman and then
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          2  I will take questions from my colleagues.  Why focus

          3  on Augusta in a time of war, Doctor, you stated that

          4  in a climate where we are dealing with other

          5  particular issues, that when you asked your daughter

          6  about golf, her eyebrows raised and she said, "Why

          7  Dad"?  I mean, when you talk, in other words, what

          8  is the real point behind all of this?

          9                 DR. GOODMAN:  I think the real point

         10  is that Augusta is symbolic.  And that it provides a

         11  sort of telescope view of the values of our society.

         12    And here is an opportunity for our society to

         13  grapple with discrimination, it has been grappling

         14  with discrimination for hundreds of years.  It is a

         15  clear way to signal to the world the value of

         16  equality and democracy.  And, yet, despite all the

         17  weight of American history on that side and in that

         18  process, people cling to it.  It is something akin

         19  to the Confederate flag issue, in the sense that

         20  there are people that see that as a symbol of

         21  hatred, of hostility, of inequality.  Yet, others

         22  who understand that it means so much for other

         23  people, continue to promote it and to seek ways to

         24  justify and rationalize its use.  And, I think it is

         25  a comparable thing here.
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          2                 MS. BUTLER  Can I also comment on

          3  that, as well?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Sure.

          5                 MS. BUTLER  Because we have gotten a

          6  lot of those questions too.  I think some people

          7  look at Augusta and think of it as a small issue,

          8  but, we have gotten a lot of questions, we are at

          9  war, what Title IX, nobody is really worrying about

         10  that.  But, I think the main point, is that the

         11  whole idea of us being at war is trying to help

         12  other people understand the idea of democracy and

         13  freedom.  And, what message are we sending to our

         14  own, to the American people, when we have this

         15  discrimination that still exists.  So, yes we are at

         16  war, or we were at war, and it is a horrible thing

         17  that is going on.  But, the war ended and we need to

         18  make sure that we are continuing to end

         19  discrimination in the United States.  It does not

         20  mean that we need to forget about everything that is

         21  going on here and just let it all go.  So, we have

         22  given that response.

         23                 Especially the media, the media has

         24  been kind of harsh on us.  But, I think, it is

         25  really important to stay focused on everything that

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  is going on.  Not just civil rights, but, the

          3  economy and all other issues that are going on in

          4  our homeland.

          5                 MR. FARRELL:  Let me just add one

          6  thing.  There are now two- hundred thousand women

          7  serving in the United States military.  And, it just

          8  seems sort of odd, to me, that none of them can be

          9  members at Augusta.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  That goes back

         11  to the question I was going to ask you in regards to

         12  when did they start admitting African- American men,

         13  but, those are some of the questions when we talk

         14  about breaking down the walls, that we have to begin

         15  to look at.

         16                 Let me take some questions and

         17  comments from Council Member Gale Brewer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just want to

         19  thank each and every one of you.  And, thank Tracy

         20  Boyland because, I think, the tie-in to Title IX is

         21  extremely important.  And the reason is that the, I

         22  must admit, I was not aware, and thank you for the

         23  update. Because one of the questions I have is

         24  internationally and nationally, nationally

         25  obviously, we should be looking at some of just the
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          2  tournaments in general, and whether it is

          3  discrimination, because, one of the concerns is the

          4  scholarship money that you talked about.  And I just

          5  feel very strongly that maybe these are two parallel

          6  aspects that we should be continuing.

          7                 The fact of the matter is that even

          8  in the resolution that we wrote, it talks more

          9  positively that Title IX has been around for thirty

         10  years, which it has.  And, that it is providing the

         11  vehicle, which it has.  We almost should add a

         12  clause that says it is under attack, and therefore,

         13  we should be more likely to pass this resolution.

         14  Because it is one more way of saying that Title IX

         15  is extremely important.  The tie in is very much

         16  there.

         17                 But, my question is, what do you see

         18  in terms of the Title IX fight, and does this

         19  campaign assist it, as we move forward, in terms of

         20  your work?

         21                 MS. BUTLER:  Right now, we, the

         22  Department of Education has not said either way as

         23  to what they are leaning to, as far if they are

         24  going to issue a new policy, a new regulation,

         25  anything.  So, we really do not know what the
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          2  administration is going to do.  So, that is why we

          3  focus all of our efforts on a proactive campaign.

          4  Because I think, like you said, most people are not

          5  aware that this is going on right underneath their

          6  nose. And, so, we have launched our website as kind

          7  of a central location for, mostly we are trying to

          8  get the word out to parents that have young girls

          9  that participate in sports and say, you need to get

         10  the message right now to your Congressional members.

         11    Because if you do not do that, you may wake up

         12  tomorrow and there may be a new policy that you

         13  never expected.  And it might be, undoubtedly, going

         14  to disadvantage the future opportunities for your

         15  daughters in sport. So, as I said, right now we are

         16  launching this campaign to try and get the word out

         17  as much as possible.  And, obviously, this day is

         18  also part of that.  And, just getting all the public

         19  officials aware of what is going on, Congressional

         20  members.  I mean, I can not tell you how many

         21  Congressional members I met with that really did not

         22  know how serious it was and how serious the threat

         23  was. That are doing, you know, in district events

         24  now and trying to get their communities and their

         25  constituents aware of what is going on.
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          2                 DR. GOODMAN  Gale, could I just

          3  answer that?  One thing, I think, that Rita Haley

          4  said at the press conference, when this resolution

          5  was introduced, was that, when you were asking about

          6  how do these two issues connect.  And, I think, that

          7  Martha Burk has done an absolutely marvelous job in

          8  raising this issue. Because, in point of fact, it is

          9  a violation of the spirit of Title IX.  The spirit

         10  of Title IX, equality, equal opportunity, males and

         11  females, boys and girls, given the same chances to

         12  enjoy the wonder of sport.  And, I think, that the

         13  contribution that has been made by Rainbow/PUSH and

         14  the National Council of Women's Organizations, to

         15  this point, can only enhance the general publics

         16  understanding of the importance of supporting Title

         17  IX and buttressing the work that The Women's Sports

         18  Foundation and the National Coalition for Girls and

         19  Women in Sports is doing.  So, I mean, I think that

         20  is an important part of this, as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you,

         22  Council Member Brewer.  Council Member Espada.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA:  Madam Chair,

         24  we thank you for bringing this issue forward, and my

         25  comment would be, or my request, my respectfully
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          2  submitted request, would be to be allowed to be a

          3  prime sponsor of the Resolution.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Sure.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA:  But, also to

          6  ask just one question, and that is to the panel at

          7  large, do we know of any other private club in any

          8  organized sport, be it amateur or professional,

          9  whereby, there is discrimination on the basis of

         10  race or gender, can we identify any other?

         11                 MR. FARRELL:  Well, there are

         12  certainly other clubs that have exclusionary

         13  policies with regards to race and gender. But,

         14  again, we do not see them in the same light as

         15  Augusta, because they do not have these

         16  international golf tournaments. They do not have the

         17  heads of such prominent corporations involved in it.

         18    But, other than that, no.  I mean, there are

         19  certainly separate basketball leagues for men and

         20  women. And, some people will say, is that inherent

         21  discrimination, but there is certainly an equal

         22  opportunity for women to compete to be in the WMBA,

         23  et   cetera.   But, I do not know of any other

         24  sports entity that so blatantly embraces gender

         25  discrimination.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  What about the

          3  associations rights of the members of the clubs?

          4  Have we looked at that on a legality, in terms of

          5  the clubs rights?   And, I am just playing devils'

          6  advocate here.  To state that, one, if you have the

          7  WMBA, and you have the MBA, those are in inherently

          8  two different associations.  But, let us just say,

          9  in terms of the club itself, what are their rights?

         10  Have we begun to look at that in terms of the

         11  constitutionality of the matter of them

         12  discriminating against women?

         13                 MR. FARRELL:  Again, I think they are

         14  walking a very fine line.  They are representing

         15  themselves as a private club, yet, when I was down

         16  there, if you looked at the amount of police for

         17  helping people across the street, guiding, directing

         18  traffic, hospitals on stand- by, people on stand- by

         19  in case somebody gets hurt, the amount of overtime

         20  put in by garbage collectors to pick up all the

         21  trash that is down there.  School is let out so that

         22  people, so that kids can take jobs during that week

         23  to make money. So, there is public support for

         24  private entity, and that is what comes into

         25  question.  How can you benefit from all this public
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          2  support and still call yourself private?  So that is

          3  one of the things that we are also looking at

          4  legally, is, can you do that? Can you have a liquor

          5  license from the State of Georgia?  Because I am

          6  sure the State of Georgia has something that says

          7  you cannot discriminate.  So there is a lot of

          8  unanswered questions, but the golf club continues to

          9  hide behind what they call a constitutional right.

         10  And we do question that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  All right, I

         12  think there was also, in some of the articles that I

         13  read, that there were questions that were posed to

         14  the legislators.  And when the town itself, and they

         15  found nothing wrong with the entities, the public

         16  entities, that you are describing being used.

         17  Because, I think, they found it as a mechanism to

         18  draw people into the town.  So, I think, there are a

         19  number of lawsuits that probably can be expunged

         20  from the fact, just by your statement alone that if

         21  you are going to practice discriminatory, have

         22  discriminatory views, that why have city, state and

         23  federal money tied into, or basically City money

         24  tied into the practice of discrimination.

         25                 I think there is a lot of homework in
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          2  that statement that you just made, in terms of how

          3  the town itself is viewed and what their practices

          4  are.  It is a blanket statement, but, I think based

          5  on what you were saying, there is something to be

          6  said about that.

          7                 We have been joined by  Council

          8  Member Gentile. Thank you for joining us.  We are

          9  now focusing on our Resolution 745- A, and we are

         10  going to take a vote and leave it open on this

         11  particular resolution.  If we have no other further

         12  questions from our panel, I think we are in

         13  consensus that there is a lot of work to be done.

         14  If you know the Women's Issues Committee, you know

         15  that nothing is taken lightly.  And, where a room is

         16  small, can easily grow into a very large room, a

         17  very large press conference, in terms of a very

         18  large coverage, in terms of what change needs to be

         19  made for women in particular.  And where our work

         20  has to begin. And, I think, that we are now, with

         21  the leadership of Council Member Gale Brewer, moving

         22  into a realm where we have to begin to unturn (sic)

         23  every stone, to begin to find equality for women and

         24  equality for minorities and so on.

         25                 So I am happy that this hearing was
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          2  called to my attention by Council Member Brewer.

          3  And we continue to fight the fight that we need to

          4  do in terms of looking at Title IX, in terms of

          5  looking at NOW, and other organizations.  And just

          6  your little daughter, if we want to talk about

          7  equality on a larger scale, we have to begin to kind

          8  of reprogram the mind.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Boyland.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:   We are voting

         11  today on Resolution 745- A, which enhances the

         12  resolution calling upon The Augusta National Golf

         13  Club to cease its practice of gender, segregation,

         14  and urging all television networks and other media,

         15  particularly CBS Broadcasting, to refrain from

         16  broadcasting the Masters in 2004 and future years as

         17  long as it is held at Augusta or any other venue

         18  that promotes segregation and discrimination against

         19  women.  I vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reyna.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  On behalf of

         22  all women, I vote aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  May I be

         25  excused to explain my vote?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Yes, you may.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I think we

          4  have gone too long, allowing folks to have

          5  segregation and discrimination.  And it is about

          6  time that Augusta understand that we will not

          7  tolerate segregation and discrimination in our

          8  society.  With that, I vote aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Espada.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA:  Madam Chair,

         11  on behalf of my two granddaughters, Alexis and

         12  Samantha, and Albert, who had briefly joined us

         13  here, I vote aye with the full expectation that not

         14  only this generation live out its full promise to

         15  not thwart any effort and reach total human

         16  potential, but that we, in this generation, will

         17  soon see the day when all this discrimination based

         18  on gender and race will end.  I vote aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gentile

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 5 in the

         22  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         23  proposed Resolution 745- A is adopted.  Council

         24  members, please sign the Committee reports. Thank

         25  you.

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND:  Thank you very

          3  much, Committee, and I look forward to seeing you on

          4  Friday as we conquer the world of child support.

          5  All right, thank you.

          6                 While we wait for a vote, my

          7  colleagues, I would like to announce also that on

          8  Friday, we will be having a hearing on Child

          9  Support.  Very interesting legislation and a

         10  resolution that we will be putting forth in terms of

         11  predatory companies that have decided that they

         12  would prey on the unsuspecting roles of women,

         13  mostly single women, and charging exuberant amounts

         14  up to 30 percent for child support collection.  So,

         15  we will be introducing Intro 409- A on private child

         16  support collection agencies, at one o'clock in the

         17  chambers on Friday.

         18                 As we wait for a vote, I thank my

         19  Committee members for, - -  Well can we leave the

         20  vote open?  We will leave it open for Kendall

         21  Stewart coming across the street.  Thank you.

         22                 (Subsequently, Kendall Stewart voted

         23  aye changing the vote to 6 in the affirmative, 0 in

         24  the negative, with no abstentions.)

         25                 (Hearing adjourned at 2:30 p.m.)
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